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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat

Dear Shareholders,

I am delighted that despite the currency exchange headwinds with a weaker GBP and Euro as well as stagnant
global growth, the Group has managed to deliver a healthy and commendable pre-tax margin of 20.22% on the
back of total revenue of RM350.3 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Over the years, the Group has experienced various challenges and there is no exception in 2017. There is no
denial that the significant transformations brought upon by digital advancement to our society has to a certain
extent impacted our industry. Within our industry, the sector is faced with stagnant growth. Fortunately, we
have been able to capture new market share in United Kingdom and also across some of the countries in Asia
Pacific. We will continue to focus on efficient manufacturing and cost control while looking at various opportunities
to increase our market share.

While we are growing our existing core businesses enthusiastically, we also recognise the need to expand beyond
our traditional filing products in order to deliver sustainable growth and create consistent values to our
sharcholders. Leveraging on our expertise and core competencies in dealing with the main materials used for
filing products such as papers and plastics, we have set our goals to diversify beyond the traditional filing
products. Our solid cash flow and healthy balance sheet position will provide us with ample capacity to expand
and diversify our existing business activities into other consumer products.

The past nine months have been a hectic period for our team as we started our preliminary work to venture
into new business which are disposable food wares. A total budget of RM 30 million has been allocated to this
new business. A lot of effort has been spent to evaluate the procurement of material and equipment integration
in order to enable us to be a highly efficient manufacturer in this field.

Our success comes from the relentless efforts and commitments demonstrated by our team of dedicated
employees. On behalf of the Board, we wish to express our appreciation to all our employees for their hard
work. We also wish to thank our business partners and shareholders for their unwavering support rendered
throughout the year.

I am confident that we will be riding through this turbulent but exciting journey, as the Group continues to
reinvent and explore new business opportunities going forward.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Introduction

The Group is principally involved in the manufacturing and marketing of various
filing and stationery products. As an integrated files manufacturer, the Group offers a
wide range of products made from paperboard, plastic and metals. Through its 100%
owned subsidiary in United Kingdom, the Group also manufactures coloured paper
and boards for filing , educational and other specialty markets.

The Group’s manufacturing facilities consist of five production and warehousing sites
in Malaysia, two files producing plants and one paper mill located in the United
Kingdom and another two production facilities in Germany.

Locally, the Group remains as the leading files manufacturer in Malaysia with a
comprehensive distribution network of more than 750 retailers, hypermarkets,
wholesalers and office suppliers. Its premier brand “ABBA” is the leading brand
name in Malaysia for filing and stationery products.

Globally, the Group exports its products across various continents including Europe,
USA, Asia Pacific, Australia, New Zealand, Middle East and Africa. The Group has
successfully established itself as one of the leading filing suppliers in United
Kingdom and part of Europe.

Financial Overview

FYE 2017 FYE 2016

RM’000 RM’000

Revenue 350,324 389,856
Results from Operating Profits 66,020 92,398
Finance Cost (357) (297)
Shares of Profits of associate 5,183 6,435
Profit Before tax (“PBT”) 70,846 98,536
PBT % 20.22% 25.27%
Taxation (14,782) (21,878)
Profit After Tax (“ PAT”) 56,064 76,658
PAT % 16.00% 19.66%

Revenue

Total revenue contracted by 10.1% due to the shift in procurement to local sources by
some of the major customers in USA. In addition, the weakening in GBP against the
local currency has resulted in a lower sales reported in RM.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(cont'd)

In terms of sales revenue generated by oversea subsidiaries measured in their
respective local currencies, Germany plants (Plastoreg Smidt GmbH) recorded a drop
of 9.3% amidst a market environment of intense competition and consolidation of
customers. Despite the challenges faced in the market, sales performance by the
subsidiaries in the United Kingdom increased by 3% during the year. The Group’s
physical presence in this market has enabled it to practise a more efficient inventory
management and thus resulted in better delivery service to its customers. The Group
anticipates encouraging sales growth from this market segment.

Result From Operating Profits

The Group saw a drop in its operating margin from 23.7% to 18.8%. This was mainly
due to the unfavourable exchange rate movement in particular the weakening of GBP
against USD by more than 15% during the year. This did not augur well for the Group
as 39% of its filing sales were denominated in GBP while the majority of imports
were in USD. During the year, a total exchange loss of RM 2.6 million was reported
as compared to foreign exchange gain of RM 12.3 million recorded in FYE 2016.

Profit Before Tax

Pre-tax margin showed a drop from 25.3 % in FYE 2016 to only 20.2 % in FYE 2017.
As explained under the Operating Profits, this was mainly due to the unfavourable
exchange rate movement in particular the weakening of GBP against USD and also
RM. In addition, the introduction of minimum wages in Malaysia w.e.f July 2016 and
tight labour market has resulted in increased labour costs. A significant increase was
also noted in freight costs as a result of the hike in fuel cost during the year.

Taxation

Excluding the shares of profits of associate, taxation rate was consistent at 22.5% as
compared to 23.8% recorded in FYE 2016.

The lower tax rate recorded in FYE 2017 was due to higher amount of tax incentives
claimed and also a larger proportion of non-taxable income such as exempt interest
income. In addition, there was a higher non-deductible expense of RM 1.1 million
being added back in the tax calculation for FYE 2016.

Group Financial Position

Total assets for the Group strengthened by RM 21.7 million to RM 650.6 million as at
31 March 2017.

There was a drop in trade and other receivables by RM 13.4 million arising from
lower sales volume and also as a result of weakening GBP against RM. In addition,
some overseas customers have changed their billing method to net prices instead of
gross prices. This has also resulted in a corresponding drop in trade and other
payables as accrual for customers’ rebates will no longer required in the accounts.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(cont'd)

Other investments increased from RM 88.2 million to RM 125.2 million as more
funds were invested in higher interest yield instruments such as Dual Currency
Investments and Equity Linked Notes.

The combined cash and interest bearing financial instruments has risen from RM
163.8 million to RM 197.6 million. After deducting bank borrowings, total net cash
position for the Group strengthened from RM 135.3 million to RM 168.4 million.

Dividend payable has dropped from RM 13.4 million to RM 7.8 million as the Group
increased its dividend payment frequency from twice to thrice with the first interim
dividend of RM 5.8 million being paid on 19 January 2017.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group has spent a total of RM 9.9 million in capital expenditure.
A further RM 30 million would be set aside to cater for capital expenditure relating to
new projects as stated in the Chairman Statement.

Dividend

The Group is committed to rewarding its shareholders with prudent dividend pay-out.
Although no formal dividend policy is put in place, the Group has consistently given
out approximately 40% to 55% of its profit after tax to its shareholders over the years.

For FYE 2017, a first 3% interim dividend of RM 5.8 million and second interim
dividend of 4% of RM 7.8 million have been paid out in January 2017 and May 2017
respectively. A final dividend of 9% has been proposed subject to obtaining
shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming annual general meeting. This will bring the
total dividend declared to 16% per ordinary share and represents a total pay-out rate
of 55% from the Group’ profit after tax for the year.

Anticipated Risks
Foreign Exchange Risk

As more than 90% of the Group revenues were derived outside Malaysia, forex
volatilities associated with GBP, EURO and USD against Ringgit Malaysia would
impact the consolidated earnings of the Group.

The Group will continue to monitor closely the movement of the exchange rates and
adopt hedging strategies where appropriate to address the risk of major fluctuation in
exchange rates.

Risk Associated with New Ventures

To ensure a sustainable growth, the Group will be on continuous look out for new
ventures whether within or outside its core business. This will no doubt create
uncertainties as new areas are being explored and tested.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(cont'd)

The Group’s anticipated foray into paper and plastic food wares will pose both
challenges and opportunities to the Group. While there is familiarity with the
materials used in the production, sales and marketing for the products will be a new
uncharted area to explore.

To minimise any potential losses from such new ventures, the Group will carry out
proper due diligence process and in depth evaluation prior to making any new
investment decision.

Credit Risks of Customers

As the Group extends credit terms to most of its customers, any default of payment by
its customers or failure to pay on time will affect the financial position of the Group.

To mitigate the risk, the Group has put in place stringent credit control procedures to
evaluate, review and monitor all potential new debts or current debts owed by its
customers.

Business Outlook and Prospects

Although the industry prospect will remain challenging going forward in view of the
current market condition, consolidation of the players in the various markets was
viewed as a positive development. The stability in product pricing will provide good
buffer to a certain extent against major fluctuation in foreign exchange rates.

The Group will continue to focus on its core business while also on an active look out
for other potential new business opportunities. Supported by a team of experienced
and dedicated employees coupled with solid financial position, the Group is confident
that it will continue to deliver profitable results in 2018.



CORPORATE STRUCTURE

ASIA FILE

ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHD.

SIN CHUAN MARKETING SDN. BHD FORMOSA TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

ABBA MARKETING SDN. BHD. LIM & KHOO SDN. BHD

HIGHER KINGS MILL LIMITED AFP COMPOSITE SDN. BHD

PREMIER STATIONERY LIMITED PREMIER STATIONERY PTE. LTD

ASIA FILE PRODUCTS SDN BHD

PLASTOREG SMIDT GMBH



PRODUCTS OF THE GROUP
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Dato' Lim Soon Huat

Lim Soon Wah

Ng Chin Nam

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat

age 60, is a
Malaysian citizen and the Non-
Independent Executive Chairman. He
was appointed to the Board on 3 January
1996 and was subsequently appointed as
Chairman of the Board on 16 July 2001.

He graduated from University of
Melbourne with a Master Degree in
Engineering. He has vast working
experiences of more than thirty (30) years
in both public and private sectors. Prior
to his involvement in business, he was
involved in civil engineering projects
undertaken by the Drainage and Irrigation
Department. In 1986, he joined the filing
and stationery industry and since then he
has been playing a prominent role in all
facets of the company management. He
is the Vice Chairman of Penang Paper &
Stationery Association and also the
Deputy President of The Federation of
Stationers and Booksellers Association
of Malaysia. He also holds directorship
in various subsidiaries of Asia File
Corporation Bhd Group.

As at 19 June 2017, he is the registered
holder of 2,830,705 shares in Asia File
Corporation Bhd and is deemed interested
over 83,738,951 shares in Asia File
Corporation Bhd registered under Prestige
Elegance (M) Sdn Bhd. He also holds
50.01% of the total shareholding in
Prestige Elegance (M) Sdn Bhd. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2017,
he attended four (4) Board of Directors’
meetings.

Lim Soon Wah age 50, is a Malaysian
citizen and a Non-Independent Executive
Director. He was appointed to the Board
on 3 January 1996.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree
from University of Manitoba, Canada in
1986. Since then he has been actively
involved in the production operation of
the Company. He also holds directorships
in several private limited companies.

As at 19 June 2017, he is the registered
holder of 3,191,120 shares in Asia File
Corporation Bhd. He also holds 10.75%
of the total shareholding in Prestige
Elegance (M) Sdn Bhd, a substantial
shareholder of Asia File Corporation Bhd.

During the financial year ended 31 March

2017, he attended four (4) Board of
Directors’ meetings.
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Ng Chin Nam age 47, is a Malaysian
citizen. He was appointed to the Board
on 11 June 2012 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director. He is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.

Mr Ng is a member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants
(CIMA). He has more than 20 years of
experience in the fields of accounting,
auditing, taxation and corporate finance.
He started his carecer in 1992 in
manufacturing environment. He joined
an international audit firm as an audit
senior in 1997 after obtaining his
professional qualification from CIMA.
He left the audit firm as assistant
manager in 2000 to join a listed company
as finance manager. In 2007, he left to
assume role as head of Management
Information System (MIS), Human
Resource and Finance in another listed
company. Mr Ng presently sits on the
Board of Atta Global Group Berhad and
Niche Capital Emas Holdings Berhad.

During the financial year ended 31 March
2017, he attended four (4) Board of
Directors” meetings.



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Lam Voon Kean

Lam Voon Kean age 65, is a Malaysian
citizen. She was appointed to the Board
on 11 June 2012 as a Non-Independent
Non-Executive Director. Thereafter, she

was re-designated as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 29 May 2014. She
is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee.

Ms Lam has over 30 years of experience
in the fields of accounting, auditing,
corporate secretarial and advisory. She
began her career with KPMG in 1974
under articleship and subsequently
promoted as senior audit manager. She
left KPMG in 1994 to join M & C
Services Sdn Bhd [now known as
Boardroom Corporate Services (Penang)
Sdn Bhd after restructuring] as the senior
manager and was promoted to managing
director until her retirement in 2011. Ms
Lam presently sits on the Board of
Globetronics Technology Bhd and RGB
International Bhd.

During the financial year ended 31 March
2017, she attended four (4) Board of
Directors’meetings.

Nurjannah Binti Ali

Nurjannah Binti Ali age 58, is a
Malaysian citizen. She was appointed to
the Board on 15 April 1999 as an
Independent Non-Executive Director.
She is a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee.

With an accounting background,
Nurjannah has more than fifteen (15)
years® experience in finance and corporate
management. She presently sits on the
Board of Public Packages Holdings Bhd
and several other private limited
companies.

During the financial year ended 31 March
2016, she attended four (4) Board of
Directors’ meetings.

Lim Soon Hee

e

Lim Soon Hee age 54, is a Malaysian
citizen. He was appointed as a Non-
Independent Non-Executive Alternate
Director on 3 January 1996. On 05 June
2013, he was appointed as alternate
director to Mr Lim Soon Wah.

He has more than ten (10) years’
experiences in sales and marketing and
was appointed as director for one of the
subsidiary companies in 1985. He also
holds directorships in various private
limited companies.

As at 19 June 2017, he is the registered
holder of 4,117,996 shares in Asia File
Corporation Bhd. He also holds 8.74%
of the total shareholding in Prestige
Elegance (M) Sdn Bhd, a substantial
shareholder of Asia File Corporation Bhd.

Notes: Datin Khoo Saw Sim, a substantial shareholder, is the mother of directors, Dato’ Lim Soon Huat and Mr Lim Soon Wah, and
alternate director, Mr Lim Soon Hee. Other than as disclosed in the Profile of Directors, none of the directors has any family
relationship with any other directors/major shareholders of the Company.

Other than as disclosed in the Directors” Report and Notes to the Financial Statements, there is no other conflict of interest
that the directors have with the Company.

Except for Ng Chin Nam, Nurjannah binti Ali and Lam Voon Kean which were disclosed in the Profile of Directors, none
of the other directors hold any directorship in any other public listed companies.

In the past ten (10) years, none of the directors was convicted of any offence other than traffic offences.

1



PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Rod Martin, aged 58, Male, British citizen
- Managing Director of Premier Stationery Limited
- Director of Higher Kings Mill Limited

Mr Rod Martin graduated with a Business Degree from Middlesex University, England. He
has been involved in the stationery and filing business for more than thirty years. He was
appointed as the managing director of Premier Stationery Limited since its establishment in
1997. He also holds the directorship of Higher Kings Mill Limited since 2011. Mr Rod
Martin is responsible for overseeing the operations of the two subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom.

Mr Rod Martin does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder. He has no conflict of interest in any business arrangement involving the
Company.

Mr Hubertus Rohe, aged 60, Male, a German citizen
- Managing Director of Kirchgandern plant of Plastoreg Smidt GmbH.

Mr. Hubertus Rohe studied Marketing and Languages at European Business School.

He joined Plastoreg Smidt GmbH in November 1990 as Sales Director and was appointed as
Managing Director in January 2003. In 2011 Mr Hubertus Rohe was appointed as director of
Higher Kings Mill Limited.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr Hubertus Rohe assumed the role as Export Country
Manager at Gloria Werke and was the Export Director at Brause GmbH in 1988.

Mr Hubertus Rohe does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder. He has no conflict of interest in any business arrangement involving the
company.

Mr Uwe Smidt, aged 49, Male, a German citizen
- Managing Director of Witzenhausen plant of Plastoreg Smidt GmbH

Mr Uwe Smidt graduated with a degree in Business Administration from the University
of Goettingen, Germany.

He pursued a career as IT Consultant and System Analyst before joining Plastoreg in 1997.
Prior to his appointment as the Managing Director, he took on the responsibility as
Purchasing Director and moved on to become Export Director of Plastoreg’s Bespoke
Division. He was appointed as Managing Director of Plastoreg for the Witzenhausen plant in
March 2008.

In 2016, Mr Smidt became member of the Supervisory Board of CadCabel AG,a
manufacturer of cabling solutions and engineering software.

Mr Uwe Smidt does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder. He has no conflict of interest in any business arrangement involving the
company.
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PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(cont'd)

Ms Goh Phaik Ngoh, aged 49, Female, a Malaysian
- Chief Financial Officer

Ms Goh Phaik Ngoh graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University of
Otago, New Zealand in 1991 and passed the Final Qualifying Examination organised by The
New Zealand Society of Accountants in 1992.

Prior to joining Asia File Group of Companies in 1994, she was attached to the
international accountancy firms of Messrs Arthur Andersen & Co and Coopers & Lybrand
(Singapore).

She currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries of Asia File Group of Companies.

Ms Goh Phaik Ngoh does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder. She has no conflict of interest in any business arrangement involving the
Company.

Ms Lim Chin Chin, aged 36, Female, a Malaysian
- Business Operation Manager

Ms Lim Chin Chin graduated with a Bachelor of Mechanical and Manufacturing
Engineering Degree from The University of Melbourne, Australia.

She joined the Group in 2005 and is in charge of MIS & Prepress departments, computer
form division and is also actively involved in the various new projects undertaken by the
Group of Companies.

She currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries of Asia File Group of companies.

Ms Lim Chin Chin is the daughter of Dato” Lim Soon Huat, the niece of Mr Lim Soon Wah
and Mr Lim Soon Hee and the granddaughter of Datin Khoo Saw Sim. She has no conflict of
interest in any business arrangement involving the Company.

Mr Chiang Kok Nearn, aged 42, Male, a Malaysian
- Plant Manager at Permatang Tinggi, Penang

Mr Chiang Kok Nearn graduated with a Master Degree of Business Administration from
University of South Australia.

He started his career with Swanson Plastics (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd as Production Manager in
April 2006. He joined the Group as Plant Manager in July 2011 and is involved in overseeing
the manufacturing operation in the plant at Permatang Tinggi, Penang.

Mr Chiang Kok Nearn does not have any family relationship with any director and/or major

shareholder. He has no conflict of interest in any business arrangement involving the
Company.
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PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(cont'd)

Additional information:

None of the Key Senior Management has:

(i) been convicted of any offence (other than traffic offences) within the past five (5) years;
and

(ii) been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant bodies during the
financial year ended 31 March 2017.

14



GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TURNOVER

38742 M 389.86 M

A AN

350.32 M

A

32338 M

A

Year Turnover (RM)
2013 323.38 M
2014 365.88 M
2015 387.42 M
2016 389.86 M
2017 350.32 M

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
98.54 M

A

76.58 M
70.85 M
64.61 M

Y. Profit Before

56.13 M A ear Tax (RM)

A 2013 56.13 M
2014 76.58 M
2015 64.61 M
2016 98.54 M
2017 70.85 M

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (cont'd)

DIVIDENDS PER ORDINARY SHARE - NET (CENTS)

20.50 22:30

. A 15.00% 16.00 16.00

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTYS)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

* Based on enlarge share capital as a result of the bonus issue implemented in FYE 2015,
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Year

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Year

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Dividends
Per Ordinary
Share - Net (Cents)

20.50
22.50
15.00%*
16.00

16.00

Basic Earnings
Per Share (Cents)

37.05

52.18
26.50*
40.08

29.07



STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of Asia File Corporation Bhd acknowledges the importance of
good corporate governance in protecting and enhancing the interest of shareholders.
As such the Board is committed towards adherence to the principles,
recommendations and best practices set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance (MCCG) 2012 issued by the Securities Commission Malaysia.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible towards the strategic planning, overseeing the resources and
the overall operation of the Group.

The principal roles and responsibilities of the Board in enhancing Board’s
effectiveness in pursuit of corporate objectives encompass the following specific
areas:-

e review and adopt strategic plans;
e oversee the conduct of the Group’s businesses;

e identify principal risk areas and ensuring that appropriate risk management
system is in place to address the above risks;

e succession planning for senior management staff;

e developing and implementing investor relations program and shareholders
communication policy; and

e review the adequacy and integrity of the internal control and management
information system.

Board Balance and Independence

There are presently six (6) members on the Board comprising mainly of two (2)
Executive Directors, three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-
independent Non-Executive Alternate Director. The two Executive Directors have
been actively involved in the industry for many years, bringing with them a wealth of
valuable experiences in ensuring the success of the Group. The Non-Executive
Directors, with their diversified backgrounds and specialization help to steer the
Group in the right direction in fulfilling its role to its shareholders. A brief profile of
each individual director is presented in the Profile of Directors section of this Annual
Report. The assessment of independence of the Independent Directors is carried out
upon appointment, annually and when any new interest or relationship develops.

The Chief Executive, Dato’ Lim Soon Huat assumed the role of Chairman upon the
demise of the late Dato’ Lim Eng Siang on 27 June 2001. The Board is mindful of the
dual role of Chairman and Chief Executive held by Dato’ Lim Soon Huat but is of the
view that the present composition of the board and its decision making process will
provide sufficient check and balance. More than 50% of the current Board
composition consists of Independent Directors with distinguished credentials and
have also acted as Independent Directors in other public listed companies. The Board
could rely on their extensive experience and knowledge to ensure that there is

17



STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(cont'd)

independence of judgement. In addition during the decision making process, the
majority view of the Board will be duly considered whereby no single Board member
can dominate its decision making process. The Board is confident that there will not
be any potential of conflict of interest as all related party transactions are disclosed in
accordance with the Main Market Listing Requirements. In view of the extensive
experience of Dato’ Lim Soon Huat in managing the Group’s business, the Board is
of the view that it could benefit from a knowledgeable Chairman in providing timely
updates and guideline when deliberating on key issues or during discussions on latest
developments.

The Board took note of the recommendation of the Code on the tenure of an
Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years. The
Board is of the view that Puan Nurjannah Binti Ali has performed her duties diligently
and provided independent views in participating in deliberations and decision making
of the Board and Board Committees. The length of her service on the Board does not
in any way interfere with her exercise of independent judgement and ability to act in
the best interest of the Group. In view of the above, the Board is making a
recommendation to shareholders that Puan Nurjannah Binti Ali, who has served on
the Board for more than nine years, remains as Independent Non-Executive Director.

Whistle-Blowing

The Group is committed to ensuring that its business and operations are conducted in
an ethical, moral and legal manner. In line with this commitment, the Group has
adopted a whistleblowing policy which serves as an early warning system to assist the
Company in detecting any improper conduct within the Group and take early
corrective action.

The whistleblowing policy set out the internal channel and reporting procedures for
all employees of the Group to disclose any irregularities and the protection accorded
to employees who disclose such allegations in good faith.

Board Meetings and Supply of Information

The Board meets at least four (4) times a year and with additional meetings convened
as the need arises, to inter-alia approve the Quarterly Reports, the Annual Report and
to review the performance of the Company and its operating subsidiaries.

The Board receives relevant documents on matters requiring its consideration prior to
each meeting. Notice of meetings setting out the agenda and accompanied by the
relevant Board papers are distributed to the Directors before the Board meeting to
enable them to peruse and if require to obtain further information on issues to be
deliberated. The minutes of Board meetings are circulated to all Directors for their
perusal prior to confirmation of the minutes to be done at the commencement of the
following Board meeting. The Directors may request for clarification or raise
comments before the minutes are tabled for confirmation and upon receiving
confirmation from all the members at the Board meetings, the minutes will be signed
by the Chairman of the meeting as a correct record of the proceedings of the meeting.

Members of the Board have direct access to the Senior Management and are also
given unrestricted access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary and

18



STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(cont'd)

other professional advisors in discharging their duties and responsibilities at the
expense of the Group. All corporate announcements including quarterly financial
results will be reviewed and approved by the Board prior to any announcement being
made to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

A total of four (4) Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31
March 2017. The attendance record is as tabulated below:-

Name of Directors Attendance
Dato’ Lim Soon Huat 4/4
Lim Soon Wah 4/4
Ng Chin Nam 4/4
Nurjannah Binti Ali 4/4
Lam Voon Kean 4/4

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary (and or representative) attends and ensures that all Board
meetings are properly convened, and that accurate and proper records of the
proceedings and resolutions passed are recorded in the minutes books maintained at
the registered office of the Company.

The Company Secretary ensures that deliberations at Board and Board Committee
meetings are properly documented, and subsequently communicated to the relevant
Management for appropriate actions. The Board is updated by the Company Secretary
on the follow-up of its decisions and recommendations by the Management.

In addition, the Company Secretary briefs the Board on proposed contents and timing
of materials announcements to be made to Bursa Malaysia. The Company Secretary
also serves notices to the Directors and Principal Officers on the closed periods for
trading in the Company’s shares in accordance with the black-out periods for dealing
in the Company’s securities pursuant to the Main Market Listing Requirement of
Bursa Malaysia.

Board Charter

The Board had formalised a Board Charter setting out the duties, responsibilities and
functions of the Board in accordance with the principles of good corporate
government set out in the policy documents and guidelines issued by the regulatory
authorities. The Board Charter is reviewed periodically and updated in accordance
with the needs of the Company to ensure its effectiveness. The Board Charter is
available online at www.asia-file.com.

Board Members Appointment Process
The Nomination Committee considers and recommends new appointment to the
Board. In discharging this duty, the Nomination Committee will address the

suitability of an individual by taking into consideration the individual’s skills,
knowledge, expertise and experience, professionalism and integrity.
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Article 79 of the Company’s Articles stated that at any point of time, the total number
of Directors shall not be less than three and not more than fifteen. Directors may only
hold up to five directorships in public listed companies.

Re-appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, at
least one-third of the Directors shall retire from office each year at the Annual
General Meeting and all Directors shall retire from office once at least in each three
(3) years but shall be eligible for re-election.

The Companies Act, 2016 (which repealed the Companies Act, 1965) has removed
the age limit and the re-appointment of Director who is over 70 years to be subject to
shareholders’ approval at each Annual General Meeting.

Board Gender Diversity Policy

The Board currently does not adopt any policy on boardroom diversity, such as
gender and age. The Board is of the view that while it is important to promote
diversity, the normal selection criteria of a Director, based on effective blend of
competences, skills, experience and knowledge in areas identified by the Board,
should remain a priority so as not to compromise on capabilities, experience and
qualification.

The Group was awarded a Certificate of Appreciation by Ministry of Women, Family
and Community Development for achieving the target of at least 30 percent woman
on board in public listed companies. The recognition is given in conjunction with Hari
Wanita 2016.

Board Assessment

Board assessment and evaluation is performed annually with the objective to enhance
its effectiveness, strength and to identify areas that need improvement.

The assessment is divided into four sections as follows:

1. Board and Board Committees Evaluation

2. Assessment of Character, Experience, Integrity, Competence and Time Commitment
3. Assessment on Mix of Skill and Experience
4.

Evaluation of Level of Independence of a Director
The main criteria set out in the abovementioned sections are as follows:

e Skills and experience of individual directors
e Roles and responsibilities of the Board and individual directors

e Time commitment in deliberation and participation in the Board and Board
committees meetings

e The level of independency for the Independent Directors’ participation in
deliberating on issues put before the Board
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e Satisfaction with the quality of materials and presentations in the meetings and
timely circulation of meeting materials before commencement of the meetings

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the assessment was conducted on the
Board, Board Committees and individual Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Board as a whole approves the remuneration of the Executive Directors with the
Directors concerned abstaining from the decision in respect of their remuneration.

The details of the remuneration for the Directors of the Company during the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:-

Other Benefits
Fees Salaries | Bonuses | Emoluments in Kkinds Total
RM’000 | RM’000 | RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Executive 175 868 534 3 38 1,618
Directors
Non-Executive 96 - - 11 - 107
Directors

The Board is of the opinion that it is advisable not to state in detail each Director’s
remuneration. The remuneration for the Directors for the financial year ended 31
March 2017 are, however, summarised into the following bands:-

Range of Remuneration Executive Non-Executive
Below RM 50,000 - 3
RM 50,001 - RM 100,000 - 1
RM 600,001- RM 650,000 1 -
RM 950,001 - RM 1,000,000 1 -

Directors’ Training

The Board, as a whole, ensures that it recruits to the Board only individuals of
sufficient calibre, knowledge and experience to fulfil the duties of a Director
appropriately. At the date of this statement, all the Directors have attended and
successfully completed the Mandatory Accreditation Program (MAP) prescribed by
the Bursa Securities.

During the financial year under review, the Directors had participated in various
programmes and seminars as set out below to enhance their knowledge and expertise:
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Directors Training/Seminars/Forum/Conference attended Name of organiser
Dato’ Lim e Enhanced Undertaking of Risk Management Bursa Malaysia
Soon Huat and Internal Control
e Affin Hwang Capital Conference Series 2016 Affin Hwang
- Navigating through Shifting Sands Capital
Lim Soon o Enhanced Undertaking of Risk Management Bursa Malaysia
Wah and Internal Control
Lam Voon e Focus Group Series: Corporate Governance Bursa Malaysia
Kean Disclosure “What makes Good, Bad and Ugly
Corporate Governance Reporting”
e Risk Management & Internal Control: Bursa Malaysia
Workshop for Audit Committee Members —
“An Integrated Assurance on Risk
Management and Internal Control — Is Our
Line of Defence Adequate and
Effective?”
o Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) with Tax MIA
Issues and Companies Bill 2015 Briefing
e MFRS/FRS Update 2016/2017 Seminar KPMG
e KPMG in Malaysia Tax Summit 2016 KPMG
e WIM Conference on Integrity and Governance =~ Women’s Institute
For Company Directors and Senior of Management
Management Officers in Public and Private
Sectors
Ng Chin Nam e Fraud Risk Management Malaysian
Institute of
Corporate
Governance
e Malaysian Budget 2017 Grant Thornton
Puan o Malaysia International Retail, Franchise & Malaysia Retail
Nurjannah Licensing Fair 2016 (MIRF 2016) Chain Association
Binti Ali (MRCA)

Training for Directors will continue so as to ensure that they

abreast with regulatory and governance developments.

COMMITTEES ESTABLISHES BY THE BOARD

continue to keep

To ensure the effective discharge of its fiduciary duties and to enhance business and
operational efficiency, the Board delegates specific responsibilities to the Board
Committees namely Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

All committees’ compositions and term of reference are in accordance with the Bursa

Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements and consistent with the
recommendations of the MCCG 2012. The functions and terms of reference of Board
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Committees are reviewed from time to time to ensure that they remain relevant. The
term of reference of the Board Committees are available online at www.asia-file.com
Board Committee meetings are normally held in conjunction with the Board meetings.
All deliberations, recommendations and decisions of the Board Committees are
minuted and confirmed by the Board Committee at the subsequent Board Committee
meetings. During Board meetings, the Chairman of the various Board Committees
provides summary reports of the decisions and recommendations made by the Board
Committee and highlights to the Board if any further deliberation is required at Board
level.

Board Committees
A brief description of each Board Committee is provided below:-
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists exclusively of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The composition, terms of reference and a summary of the activities of the Audit
Committee are set out separately in the Audit Committee Report on pages 28 to 30 of
this Annual Report.

Chief Financial Officer attends all meetings of the Audit Committee except when
meetings are held between the Audit Committee and external auditors without
management’s presence. The Audit Committee has met with the external auditors
without management’s presence twice during the year.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises exclusively of Non-Executive Directors, all of
whom are independent Directors.

The key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as follows:-

1. To review the balance composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Directors) with an aim to achieving a balance of views on
the Board.

2. To assess and recommend to the Board all candidates for directorships to be filled,

taking into consideration the candidates’:

o Skills, knowledge, expertise and experience;

e Professionalism;

e Integrity; and

e In the case of candidates for the position of independent non-executive
directors, evaluate the candidates’ ability to discharge such responsibilities /
functions as expected from independent non-executive directors.

3. To ensure a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors
to the Board.

4. To assess and recommend to the Board, directors to fill the seats on Board
Committees.
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5. To review the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including
core competencies, of the members of the Board.

6. To assess the contribution of each individual director, the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole and the committees of the Board.

The Nomination Committee meets as and when required, and at least once a year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to provide a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment
of the Group’s financial performance and prospects through the audited financial
statements, quarterly announcement of results as well as corporate announcements on
significant developments affecting the Group in accordance with the Main Market
Listing Requirements.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the financial reporting process
and the reliability of the financial reporting of the Group. The Audit Committee
reviews the annual and interim financial statements of the Group including the
appropriateness of the accounting policies, its changes, if any, and the resultant
impacts as well as compliance with approved accounting standards and regulatory
requirements.

Directors’ Report

The Directors are responsible to ensure that financial statements of the Group give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the accounting
period and of their profit and loss and cash flows for the period then ended. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have ensured that applicable
accounting standards approved by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
(MASB) in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2016 have been
complied.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have selected and applied
consistently suitable accounting policies and made reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.

The Directors also have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
opened to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors’ Report in respect of the preparation of the annual audited report
statements of the Group is set out on page 40 to 47 in the Financial Statements section
of this annual report.

Relationship with Auditors

The Board via the Audit Committee maintains a formal and transparent professional

relationship with the Group’s external auditor. It is the policy of the Audit Committee
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to meet with the external auditors to discuss their audit plan, audit findings and their
reviews in respect of the integrity of the Group’s financial statements. The Audit
Committee discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences. The Audit Committee met with the
external auditor twice during the year without the presence of the Executive Directors
and the management staff. In addition, the external auditors are invited to attend the
annual general meeting of the Group and are available to answer shareholders’
questions on the conduct of the statutory audit and the preparation and contents of
their audit report.

The Audit Committee is tasked with authority from the Board to review any matters
concerning the appointment and re-appointment, audit fee, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor and assist them in preserving its independence. The Audit
Committee also take into account the openness in communication and interaction with
the lead audit engagement partner and engagement manager through discussions at
private meetings, which demonstrated their independence, objectivity and
professionalism. In compliance with the requirements set out by Malaysian Institute
of Accountants, the Group rotates its audit partners every five years to ensure
objectivity, independence and integrity of the audit opinions.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the suitability of KPMG PLT based on the
quality of services and sufficiency of resources provided to the Group by the firm and
the professional staff assigned to the audit.

Internal Control

The establishment of an appropriate control framework as well as the reviewing of its
effectiveness and integrity is evidence of the Board’s overall responsibility for the
Company’s system of internal controls. The Board sets policies and procedures for
internal control and ensures that such internal control system is properly carried out
by the management of the Company. The Company has established processes to
oversee and manage risks.

The effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the Group is reviewed by the
Audit Committee during its periodic meetings. This review covers the financial,
operational, and compliance controls as well as the process for the identification,
evaluation and management of the significant risks faced by the Group. Internal Audit
Department of the Group checks to ensure the Group’s compliance with
statutory/regulatory requirements, internal policies and procedures and review the
work processes/procedures for efficiency and effectiveness. Internal Audit
Department also assess the operating effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system during their course of audits.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with Shareholders and Investors
The Group recognizes the importance of keeping its shareholders and the general

public informed of the development and performance of the Group. As part of on-
going effort to strengthen relationship with its shareholders, the Group continuously
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discloses and disseminates relevant and comprehensive information in a timely
manner to its shareholders as well as to the general investing public.

A range of communication channels are used to build a more constructive relationship
between the Group and its stakeholders.

Annual Report

Annual Report is a vital source of information for shareholders, investors and the
general public. Information on the Group’s business performance, financials and its
management are disclosed in the Annual Report. The contents of the Annual Report
are continuously enhanced to take into account the latest development in the area of
corporate governance and regulatory requirements. The complete printed version of
the Annual Report is sent to every shareholder. An online version of the Annual
Report is also available on the Group’s own corporate website.

Announcements to Bursa Securities

Announcements on quarterly financial results, circulars and other general
announcements are made via Bursa LINK in full compliance with regulatory
authorities’ disclosure requirements and is also made available on the Group’s own
corporate website.

Annual General Meeting

The Board views the Annual General Meeting as the primary forum to communicate
with shareholders. Annual General Meeting held each year provide an excellent
platform for shareholders to participate in the question and answer session. All Board
members, senior management and the Group’s external auditors are available to
respond to shareholders’ questions during the Annual General Meeting.

A media conference is usually held immediately after the AGM where the Chairman
and Chief Financial Officer will update media representatives on the resolutions
passed and answer questions on matters related to the Group.

Investor Relations

The Board recognizes the importance of keeping shareholders and investors informed
of the Group’s business and corporate developments. The Board’s primary contact
with major shareholders is via the Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer,
who have regular dialogue with institutional investors and deliver presentations to
analysts periodically.

The objective is to provide updates on the Group’s financial performance, corporate
developments as well as to discuss strategic matters and address issues that the
institutional investors and analysts may have with respect to the business or
operations of the Group.

During the year , a meeting which was attended by 21 fund managers and analysts

was held in July 2016 to provide the latest developments in respect of the business of
the Group.
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Company Website

The Corporate website for the Group can be accessed by the public at www.asia-
file.com. It archives all corporate and financial information that had been made
public, such as the quarterly announcement of the financial results of the Group,
announcements and disclosures made pursuant to the disclosure requirements as set
out in Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements and other corporate
information on the Group.

The corporate information section is also on the website where information such as
profile of Directors, Board Charter, Code of Conduct and Terms of Reference for
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee are made available to the shareholders
and public.

This Statement of Corporate Governance was approved by the Board of Directors
on 14 July 2017.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

COMPOSITION, MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE:

Members and details of attendance of Directors at the Audit Committee Meetings of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

No. of Meeting

Name of Member Directorship Attended

Ng Chin Nam (Chairman)  Independent Non-Executive 4/4
Director

Nurjannah Binti Ali Independent Non-Executive 4/4

(Member) Director

Lam Voon Kean (Member) Independent Non-Executive 4/4
Director

The Audit Committee comprise of not less than three members. Currently, all the
members are independent Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr Ng Chin Nam is a member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (CIMA). There are no alternative directors to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets at least four times annually. However, at least twice a
year, the Audit Committee meets with the external auditor without the Executive
Directors and management being present. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice with the external auditor without the Executive Directors and management
being present.

All members of the Audit Committee come from strong accounting background and
as such possess the necessary knowledge to analyse and interpret financial statements
in order to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the
Audit Committee.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

The Audit Committee carried out its responsibilities and duties in accordance with its
terms of reference. During the year, the Committee carried out the following
activities:

Financial Reporting

Reviewed the unaudited quarterly and annual audited financial statements of the
Group and recommended them to the Board for approval. The focus of review was
on:-

a. changes in implementation of major accounting policies;
b. significant and unusual events;

c. compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;
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Internal Audit

a. Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Plan to ensure adequate scope and
comprehensive coverage over the activities of the Group and ensured that all high
risk areas are audited annually.

b. Reviewed the internal audit reports which were tabled during the year, the audit
recommendations made and Management’s response to these recommendations.
Where appropriate, the Committee has directed management to rectify and
improve control procedures and workflow processes based on the internal
auditors’ recommendations and suggestions for improvement.

c. Monitored the corrective actions taken on the outstanding audit issues to ensure
that all the key risks and control weaknesses have been addressed.

External Audit

a. Reviewed with the external auditors:
- their audit plan, audit strategy and scope of work for the year
- the results of their annual audit, audit report and management letter together
with management’s response to their findings.

b. Hold two meetings with the external auditor without the presence of the Executive
Directors or management to reinforce the independence of the external audit
function of the Company.

c. Evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the external auditors and made
recommendations to the Board of Directors on their appointment and
remuneration.

Related Party Transactions

Reviewed and discussed the reports of the related party transactions to ensure that
they were undertaken on an arm’s length basis and on normal commercial terms not
favourable to the related party than those generally available to the public.

Internal Audit Function

The Audit Committee is aware of the importance of an independent and adequately
resourced internal audit function in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The
Group’s Internal Audit Department assists the Audit Committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems whilst ensuring that there is
an appropriate balance of controls and risks in achieving its business objectives. The
Internal Audit also carries out investigative audit where there are improper, dishonest
and illegal acts reported.

The internal audit reviews the effectiveness of the internal control structures over the
Group’s activities focusing on high risk areas using a risk-based approach. All high

risk activities in each auditable area are audited annually.

The scope of Internal Audit covers the audits of all operating units and follow-up
audits on all key departments and operations, including subsidiaries within the Group
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in accordance with the approved annual audit plan. The findings and
recommendations were highlighted to the management for their comments and
necessary action. The internal reports are presented and reported by the Internal
Auditor to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

The cost incurred by the Group’s internal audit during the financial year amounted to
approximately RM 201,000.

This Audit Committee Report is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board
of Directors on 14 July 2017.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, the Board is pleased to provide the following statement which outlines
the nature and scope of the risk management and internal control of the Group during
the financial year under review. The associated company of the Group has not been
dealt with as part of the Group for the purpose of applying this guidance.

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system which includes the
establishment of an appropriate control environment and framework as well as
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness.

The Board recognises that a good control system will assist the achievement of
corporate objectives. However, in view of the limitations inherent in any system of
internal control, the system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve corporate objectives. Hence, it can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(a) Risk Management Framework

The Board recognises that risk is inherent in its business activities. The Board has
established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks faced by the Group and this is integrated into the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. This process has been in place throughout the financial year
and up to the date of approval of this statement.

The responsibility to manage the risks resides at all levels within the Group. The daily
operational risks such as bad debts, health and safety, regulatory compliance, product
defects and others are mainly managed at the different operating units which will be
guided by the established operating procedures. Key business and critical risks which
have significant impact on the operations of the Group such as business sustainability,
project expansions, product diversification & etc. are managed at the top management
level.

The Group’s current risk governance structure consists of the following:-

o The Board of Directors
Assume the overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and
internal control system;
- Review and approve the various internal control procedures and improvement
plans recommended by the senior management and heads of operating units
(“HOU™);
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Ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
in order to accommodate the changes in business environment or regulatory
requirements.

o Audit Committee

Assist the Board in evaluating the adequacy of risk management and internal
control framework;

Review and approve yearly audit plan submitted by the Internal Audit
Department (“IAD”);

Quarterly review and approve the internal audit report presented by the IAD.

e Senior Management and Heads of Operating Units

Establish, formulate and recommend sound internal control procedures to be
adopted at individual operating unit;

Oversees the effective implementation of risk policies and guidelines, and
cultivation of risk management culture within the Group;

Review and monitor periodically the status of the Group’s principal risks and
the required mitigation actions and update the Board accordingly.

o Internal Audit Function

Assist the Board to monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk

management processes and internal control systems that are in place within the

Group;

Play an active role in evaluating whether the existing controls and procedures

have been properly implemented and adhered to within the Group;

Ensure the implementation of corrective and preventive action plans (“CPAP”)
and meeting the agreed deadlines.

(b) Internal Control

The Group’s internal control system comprises of the following key elements:-

o  Management Style

Executive Directors are actively involved in day-to-day operations of the
Group;

Scheduled and ad hoc meetings are held at operational and management levels;
The management of individual operating units report to local management;
Monthly management reports, which include financial statistics and
operational issues, are submitted by the HOU to the Executive Directors;

The overseas operations are managed by a group of experienced personnel in
their respective countries;

Monthly reporting on performance of overseas operations is presented to the
Head Office;

Regular field visits by management staff from the Head Office to the various
overseas operations;

Periodic performance reviews are held between the Head Office and the
management personnel of the various overseas subsidiaries.
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Organizational Structure and Responsibility Levels

Formal organizational structure with clear reporting channels is established
within the Group;

Appropriate approval process and authority limits are in place on procurement
transactions covering both capital and revenue expenditure items, acquisition
and disposal of assets and other major business transactions;

Proper segregation of duties is established across the Group.

Human Resource Structure

Proper recruitment, resignation, and termination procedures are in place;
Company internal policies are governed by the Employee Handbook;

Written operating procedures are shared in the Group’s intranet;

Proper orientation is provided to newly joined employees;

Formal performance appraisal system is conducted each year;

Proper grievance procedure with proactive action taken by management to
solve problems faced by employees;

There is a whistle-blowing policy with reward system and confidentiality
protection for the whistle blower;

An Exit Employee Checklist is established to ensure that procedure such as
termination of access right is properly executed.

Financial Performance

Quarterly reviews are carried out on financial results including evaluations of
the reasons given for any unusual variances noted during the reviews;

Close monitoring of cash flows and funding by the treasury personnel;

Proper evaluation checklist and procedures established when assessing the
creditworthiness of potential customers;

Close monitoring of collections and overdue debts with stringent control on
credit terms and credit limits;

Effective credit utilization to keep the Group’s gearing at a comfortable level.

Operation Planning

Qu

Planning of material procurement and production are based on the customers’
requisitions;

Close monitoring of the status of production to avoid any delay in delivery of
products to the customers;

Regular review of the consumption level of materials to avoid under purchase
or over purchase of materials;

Close monitoring on logistic to avoid shipment delays, shortage or overage of
goods delivered to customers.

ality Control

The quality of the product is reviewed by a group of well-trained quality
inspectors which are independent from the production;

An internationally recognized Acceptance Quality Limits standard is used for
all product inspections, ranging from raw materials to finished products.
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System, Data and Information Security

An ERP system is used to record operating transactions;

New account creation is controlled via MIS Checklist;

Passwords to access system network will expire by default after 90 days;
Systems are in place to identify and prevent security violations and improper
access to business data, e.g. access to server room, network security, and real
time protection against viruses, spyware, hackers, and other cyber threats.

Health and Safety

Regular briefings and trainings on basic fire safety, evacuation drills,
workplace safety and etc. are conducted to ensure all employees are familiar
with the planned emergency response and crisis management plans.

Insurance and Physical Safeguard

Sufficient insurance coverage and physical safeguards on major insurable
assets and personnel;

Yearly policy renewal based on the current fixed asset register and their
respective net book values and replacement values;

Strict physical access control by a group of well-trained security personnel.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has an in-house IAD which is under the purview of the Audit
Committee and consists of four full time employees;

A detailed yearly audit plan which entails the scope of audit, audit timeline
and the human resources allocation for each area of audit will be prepared and
presented to the Audit Committee for approval;

During the year, the said yearly plan was reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee in November 2016 for the various audits to be carried out by IAD
for the calendar year commencing on 1 January 2017;

The internal audits are carried out based on the detailed audit procedures as
stated on the audit program designed for each of the audit area;

A risk-based approach is adopted in establishing the internal audit programs
where major risk area will be identified;

The audit program will be updated from time to time to take into consideration
the changes in the risk profile;

Internal audits are carried out on all departments and operating units, the
frequency of which is determined by the level of risk assessed;

Upon completion of each audit, an initial report will be issued to the respective
HOU in which major audit findings will be highlighted,

A deadline will be given for the respective HOU to respond and provide an
appropriate CPAP;

IAD will review the responses received and a meeting will be held to discuss
on the above;

During the meetings, a deadline will be mutually agreed to implement the
rectifying actions listed under the CPAP;

An internal audit monitoring worksheet will be created to enable the IAD to
closely monitor on the implementation of the CPAP;

Depending on the severity of the risks identified, it may warrant a re-audit
within a shorter period as opposed to the predetermined timetable;
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- During the financial year under review, the IAD has conducted fourteen (14)
scheduled internal audits across the various departments and operating units;

- In addition, various routine reviews are also conducted to ensure compliance
with the established operating procedures;

- In the event that new operating procedures or control mechanisms are
introduced to strengthen the internal control system, IAD will provide training
support to the Group upon request or where necessary, to ensure that the
established risk management process is carried out appropriately;

- Observations arising from the internal audit are presented, together with
Management’s response and proposed action plans, to the Audit Committee
for its review and approval;

- Although a number of internal control weaknesses were identified during this
process, none of the weaknesses have resulted in any material losses,
contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s
annual report.

CONCLUSION

The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s overall risk management and internal
control system are operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, and
have received the same assurance from both the Executive Chairman and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group.

There were no material losses incurred during the financial year under review as a
result of weaknesses in internal control. The Group will continue to review and
implement measures to improve the risk management and internal control
environment of the Group.

This statement is issued in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 14 July
2017.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

The information set out below is disclosed in compliance with the Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad:

1. Utilisation of Proceeds Raised from Corporate Proposals

There were no proceeds raised by Asia File Corporation Bhd (the Company) from
any corporate proposal during the financial year.

2. Share Buy-back

During the year, a total of 200 shares of the Company were purchased and
retained as treasury shares pursuant to the Shares Buy Back scheme.

The details of share buy-back during the year are as follows:-

Total Number Highest Lowest  Average

of Shares Price Paid Price Price Total
Purchased Paid Paid Consideration
RM RM RM RM
May 2016 100 4.12 4.12 4.12 442.82
November 2016 100 3.78 3.78 3.78 408.81

3. Options or Convertible Securities

There were no options issued by the Company during the financial year under
review as disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

4. Depository Receipt Programme

The Company did not sponsor any Depository Receipt Programme during the
financial year.

5. Sanctions and/or Penalties

There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its
subsidiaries (the Group), Directors or Management by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year.

6. Non-audit Fees
During the year, a total of RM36,858 was paid to KPMG or its affiliates for non-
audit services rendered.

7. Variation in Results

There were no profit estimates, forecasts or projections made or released by the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

8. Profit Guarantee

The Company did not provide any profit guarantee during the financial year.
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10.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
(cont'd)

Material Contracts

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries
involving directors’ and major shareholders’ interests, either still subsisting at the
end of the financial year or entered into since the previous financial year.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature

Details of transactions with related parties undertaken by the Asia File Group
during the period under review are disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial
Statements.

Compliance Statement

The Group has complied with the relevant principles and recommendations of the
MCCG 2012 throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017 with the
exception of the followings:-

(@

(b)

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are combined, the details of
which are fully explained in the Board Balance and Independence on Page 17 to
18 of this Annual Report.

The Board as a whole recommends the remuneration of each director.
Individual director does not participate in deliberations and voting on decisions
in respect of his remuneration package. In view of the above, the Group does not
form a Remuneration Committee.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group recognizes the importance of fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
towards the betterment of environment, community and welfare of its employees.

Environment

The Group ensures the compliance of all environmental laws and regulations by
integrating corporate social responsibilities practices into its daily operations. The
Group undertakes this by promoting and maintaining environmental best practices
such as recycling of waste materials and usage of electrical instead of fuel consumed
forklift. In view of the importance of environmental sustainability, the Group creates
awareness among employees on environment conservation by encouraging employees
to adopt the choice of 3R lifestyle, “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” wherever possible in
order to minimise the use of new resources.

Community

The Group continues with its support to various local charitable organisations. The
Group was involved in a fund raising campaign to elevate the lives of underprivileged
communities.

During the year, the Group organised a fund raising campaign for Persatuan
Kebajikan Kanak-kanak Istimewa Daerah Seberang Perai Selatan (PERKIS) located
at Nibong Tebal. Staffs had voluntarily set aside their time to plan and coordinate for
the campaign.

As part of its community projects, the Group has given files, stationeries and
computer items to primary and secondary schools in Penang. The Group has also
sponsored files and stationery in support of community events organized by certain
communities or organizations.

Workplace

The Group strives to ensure an environmental-friendly, healthy and safe workplace
for all employees. To achieve this, steps were taken to ensure that equipment and
building safety systems were functioning properly and well maintained. The Group
has also organised fire drills and plant evacuation exercises at its various plants to
create awareness among its workforce.

A talk on “Healthy Heart, Healthy You” by dietitian from Lam Wah Ee hospital was
organised during the year to raise awareness among employees on healthy diet.

The Group also organised festive celebrations and departmental dinners to encourage
employees to mingle and interact with one another to foster team spirit and build a
closer working relationship.

The Group perceives its human capital as an imperative asset. As part of its human
capital development, various in-house programmes and job skill related trainings were
conducted to equip the employees with improved skills and knowledge. The Group
also sponsored employees to attend external seminars and workshops to keep them
abreast of new developments in their respective field of expertise.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASIA FILE CORPORATION BHD.




DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding, commission agent
and provider of management services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are as stated

in Note 6 to the financial statements.

There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial
year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Results
Group Company
RM RM
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 55,921,240 30,146,689
Non-controlling interests 142,696 -

56,063,936 30,146,689

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year
under review except as disclosed in the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Dividends

Since the end of the previous financial year, the amount of dividends paid by the Company
were as follows :

i) Inrespect of the financial year ended 31 March 2016 as reported in the Directors” Report
of that year :

e an interim ordinary dividend of 7 sen per ordinary share totalling RM13,392,236
declared on 27 February 2016 and paid on 28 April 2016; and

e afinal ordinary dividend of 9 sen per ordinary share totalling RM17,289,015 declared
on 28 May 2016 and paid on 29 September 2016.

ii) In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2017 :

e an interim ordinary dividend of 3 sen per ordinary share totalling RMS5,779,898
declared on 26 November 2016 and paid on 19 January 2017; and

e asecond interim ordinary dividend of 4 sen per ordinary share totalling RM7,790,366
declared on 25 February 2017 and paid on 25 May 2017.

The final ordinary dividend recommended by the Directors in respect of the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 is 9 sen per ordinary share, subject to the approval of the members at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Directors of the Company
Directors who served during the financial year until the date of this report are :

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat

Lim Soon Wah

Nurjannah Binti Ali

Ng Chin Nam

Lam Voon Kean

Lim Soon Hee (Alternate to Mr. Lim Soon Wah)

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests and deemed interests in the shares and options over shares of the Company and
of its related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) of those who were
Directors at financial year end (including the interests of the spouse and/or children of the
Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the Register of
Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows :
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Directors’ interests in shares (continued)
Number of ordinary shares
Balance at ESOS Balance at

1.4.2016 Bought Exercised (Sold) 31.3.2017

Interest in the Company :

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat
- own 2,478,705 - - - 2,478,705
- others* 4,160,960 - 185,000 - 4,345,960
Lim Soon Wah
- own 3,983,720 33,000 768,000 (1,800,000) 2,984,720
- others* 243,712 - - (33,000) 210,712

Number of ordinary shares
Balance at Balance at
1.4.2016 Bought (Sold) 31.3.2017
Interest in the Company :

Lim Soon Hee
- own 4,117,996 - - 4,117,996

Deemed interest in the Company :

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat
- own 83,738,951 - - 83,738,951

Number of options over ordinary shares
Balance at Balance at
1.4.2016 Granted (Exercised) 31.3.2017
Interest in the Company :

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat
- own 352,000 - - 352,000
- others* 217,000 - (185,000) 32,000

Lim Soon Wah
- own 974,400 - (768,000) 206,400

Nurjannah Binti Ali
- own 64,000 - - 64,000

*  These are shares/options held in the name of the spouse and/or children and are treated as
interests of the Director in accordance with the Companies Act.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Directors’ interests in shares (continued)

By virtue of his interests in the shares of the Company, Dato’ Lim Soon Huat is also deemed
interested in the shares of the subsidiaries during the financial year to the extent the Company
has an interest.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the other Directors holding office at 31 March 2017
had any interest in the ordinary shares and options over the shares of the Company and of its
related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor
become entitled to receive any benefit (other than those fees and other benefits included in
the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by Directors as shown
in the financial statements of the Company and its related corporations) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of
which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial
financial interest, other than certain Directors who have substantial financial interests in
companies which traded with certain companies in the Group in the ordinary course of
business as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object
of enabling Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate apart from the issue of
the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”).

Issue of shares and debentures

During the financial year, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased
from 191,317,860 ordinary shares to 193,710,960 ordinary shares through the issuance of
2,393,100 new ordinary shares for cash arising from the exercise of ESOS as follows :

Number of
Exercise ordinary
price shares
RM
Exercise of options under ESOS 1.96 530,200
Exercise of options under ESOS 1.94 1,698,580
Exercise of options under ESOS 2.44 164,320

There were no other changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company and no
debentures were issued by the Company during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Options granted over unissued shares

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the
financial year apart from the issuance of options pursuant to the ESOS.

Employees’ share option scheme

The Company’s Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved by the
shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) held on 20 April 2007.

The main features of the Scheme are as follows :

)

v)

The total number of shares to be offered under the Scheme shall not exceed 15% of the
issued and paid-up share capital of the Company or such maximum percentage as
allowable by the relevant authorities at any point in time during the existence of the
Scheme. In the event the maximum number of shares offered exceeds 15% of the issued
and paid-up share capital or such maximum percentage as allowable by the relevant
authorities as a result of the Company purchasing its own shares and thereby
diminishing its issued and paid-up share capital, then the options granted prior to the
adjustment of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company shall remain valid
and exercisable but there shall not be any further offer;

The Scheme shall be in force for a period of five years commencing from 23 April 2007
being the last date on which the Company obtained all relevant approvals required for
the Scheme. The Scheme, which had expired on 22 April 2012, has been extended for
another five years until 21 April 2017;

The option is personal to the grantee and is not assignable, transferable, disposable or
changeable except for certain conditions provided for in the By-Laws;

Eligible persons are employees and Directors, who are involved in the day-to-day
management and on the payroll of the Group (save for the Non-Executive Directors of
the Group) who have been confirmed in the employment of the Group and have been in
the employment of the Group for a continuous period of at least six (6) months
immediately preceding the date of offer, the date when an offer is made in writing to an
employee to participate in the Scheme;

No options shall be granted for less than one hundred (100) shares nor :

(a) not more than fifty percent (50%) of the total number of shares to be issued under
the Scheme shall be allotted in aggregate to Directors and Senior Management of
the Group; and

(b) not more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of shares to be issued under the
Scheme shall be allotted to any Eligible Director or Employee of the Group who
either singly or collectively through persons connected with the Director or
Employee, holds twenty percent (20%) or more of the issued and paid-up ordinary
share capital of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Employees’ share option scheme (continued)

vi)

vii)

viii)

The maximum allowable allotment does not include additional shares which arise
pursuant to the event stipulated in (viii);

The exercise price for each ordinary share shall be set at a discount of not more than
10%, if deemed appropriate, or such lower or higher limit as approved by the relevant
authorities, from the weighted average of the market price of the shares as shown in the
Daily Official List issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the five (5) market
days preceding the date of offer or at par value of the shares, whichever is higher;

The options granted do not confer any dividend or other distribution declared to the
shareholders as at a date which precedes the date of exercise of the option and will be
subject to all the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company; and

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the Company during the option
period, whether by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issues, reduction
of capital, subdivision, consolidation of shares or otherwise (excluding the purchase by
the Company of its own shares) howsoever taking places, such corresponding
alterations (if any) shall be made in the number of shares relating to the unexercised
options and option price.

The options offered to take up unissued ordinary shares and the exercise price are as follows :

Number of options over ordinary shares
Lapsed due

Date of offer Expiry Exercise Balance to Balance

date price at1.4.2016 Exercised resignation at31.3.2017

2742007  21.4.2017 1.96 788,200 (530,200) (115,200) 142,800

20.4.2009 21.4.2017  2.57 472,000

472,000

3.10.2011  21.42017 194 2264920  (1,698,580) (42,080) 524,260
27.3.2014 21.4.2017 2.44 413,220 (164,320) (23,760) 225,140

3,938,340 (2,393,100) (181,040) 1,364,200

Indemnity and insurance costs

During the financial year, the total amount of insurance effected for Directors of the Company
was RM3,197. There was no indemnity given to Directors or officers of the Company during
the financial year.

45



DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Other statutory information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the
Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that :

i) all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful
debts, and

ii) any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business
have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances :

i) that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for
doubtful debts in the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii) that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company misleading, or

iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that would render any
amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist :

i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of
the financial year and which secures the liabilities of any other person, or

il) any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since
the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become
enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the
end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially
affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they
fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 have not been substantially affected by any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item, transaction or
event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this
report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)
Auditors

The auditors, KPMG PLT (converted from a conventional partnership, KPMG, on 27
December 2016), have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors :

Dato’ Lim Soon Huat
Director

Lim Soon Wah
Director

Penang,

Date : 14 July 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties
Investment in an associate
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Inventories

Current tax assets

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial assets
Other investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assets
Equity

Share capital

Treasury shares
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Note

—_
o © N W bW

10
11
12
13

14
15
16
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2017 2016
RM RM
102,485,668 100,612,629
1,484,079 1,522,952
1,387,471 1,428,803
140,746,644 134,942,581
31,455,081 31,760,000
14,396 -
277,573,339 | 270,266,965
105,939,906 107,958,643
200,215 30,538
69,281,873 82,656,190
- 4,207,312
125,155,624 88,197,069
72,437,718 75,576,622
373,015,336 358,626,374
650,588,675 628,893,339
199,333,534 191,317,860
(1,767) (916)
358,210,945 330,274,890
557,542,712 521,591,834
364,614 232,188
557,007,326 521,824,022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Note 2017 2016
RM RM
Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 18 9,609,562 8,927,973
Total non-current liabilites 9,609,562 8,927,973
Bank borrowings 17 29,159,174 28,430,116
Trade and other payables 19 41,910,064 49,863,464
Current tax payables 4,212,183 6,455,528
Dividend payable 7,790,366 13,392,236
Total current liabilities 83,071,787 ¢ 98,141,344
Total liabilities 92,681,349 107,069,317
Total equity and liabilities 650,588,675 628,893,339

The notes on pages 62 to 136 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Note 2017 2016
RM RM
Revenue 21 350,324,087 389,855,641
Cost of sales (211,841,408)  (230,380,588)
Gross profit 138,482,679 159,475,053
Distribution costs (14,055,625) (13,994,266)
Administrative expenses (68,176,516) (71,581,542)
Other operating expenses (2,414,717) (3,509,747)
Other operating income 12,184,317 22,009,192

(72,462,541)  (67,076,363)

Results from operating activities 66,020,138 92,398,690
Share of profits of equity-accounted associate,

net of tax 5,183,162 6,434,637
Interest expense (357,023) (297,286)
Profit before tax 22 70,846,277 98,536,041
Tax expense 25 (14,782,341) (21,878,346)

Profit for the year 56,063,936 76,657,695
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Note
Other comprehensive income/(expense), net
of tax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Foreign exchange translation differences for

foreign operations
Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive income of
equity-accounted associate

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to :
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen) 26

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (sen) 26

2017 2016
RM RM

4,402,705 8,470,311
(782,703) 782,703

..3620002 9,253,014
2,453,526 1,129,759

.. 6073528 10,382,773
62,137,464 87,040,468
55,921,240 76,501,880
142,696 155,815
56,063,936 76,657,695
62,005,038 86,880,851
132,426 159,617
62,137,464 87,040,468
29.07 40.08
28.98 39.67

The notes on pages 62 to 136 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Note 2017 2016
RM RM
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 70,846,277 98,536,041
Adjustments for :
Depreciation
- Property, plant and equipment 3 9,462,641 10,501,057
- Investment properties 5 41,332 41,332
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 4 38,873 38,875
Amortisation of intangible assets 8 354,018 386,383
Gain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment (37,666) (34,034)
Intangible assets written off 40,826 158,197
Interest expense 357,023 297,286
Interest income (6,463,387) (1,980,538)
Share of profit of equity-accounted
associate, net of tax (5,183,162) (6,434,637)
Share-based payments 20 70,592 331,827
Derivative financial assets 4,207,312 (4,005,449)
Property, plant and equipment written off 2,801 26,201
Fair value gain on short term funds (2,041,434) -
Fair value loss on equity-linked investments 766,679 -
Operating profit before changes in working
capital 72,462,725 97,862,541
Changes in working capital :
Inventories 3,633,275 60,433
Trade and other receivables 14,241,615 (3,793,894)
Trade and other payables (8,492,283) (1,789,635)
Cash generated from operations 81,845,332 92,339,445
Tax paid (16,666,949) (19,649,069)
Net cash from operating activities 65,178,383 72,690,376
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Note

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3

Purchase of intangible assets 8

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Dividend received from associate

Interest received

Increase in other investments

Fair value gain on short term funds

Fair value loss on equity-linked investments

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown of short term borrowings, net
Repayment of term loans
Proceeds from shares issued under ESOS
Repurchase of treasury shares 15
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 13

The notes on pages 62 to 136 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017 2016
RM RM
(9,906,676) (2,852,781)
- (626)
86,914 41,175
1,832,625 1,832,625
6,463,387 1,980,538
(37,741,258) | | (87,414,366)
2,041,434 -
(766,679) -
(37,990,253)  (86,413,435)
729,058 1,811,962
- (4,662,000)
4,735,378 2,647,987
(851) (916)
(36,461,149) | | (28,626,619)
(357,023) (297,286)

(31,354,587)

(29,126,872)

(4,166,457)  (42,849,931)
75,576,622 116,128,736

1,027,553 2,297,817
72,437,718 75,576,622




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in an associate

Total non-current assets
Current tax assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

Total equity

Liabilities
Other payables
Current tax payables
Dividend payable

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
Note 2017 2016
RM RM
6 202,187,056 202,116,464
7 5,192,167 5,192,167
207,379,223 207,308,631
21,082 .
10 19,665,656 21,769,573
13 2,195,651 2,633,983
21882389 24,403,556
229261,612 231,712,187
14 199,333,534 191,317,860
15 (1,767) (916)
16 21,364,982 25,287,276
220,696,749 216,604,220
19 774,497 1,711,581
. 4,150
7,790,366 13,392,236
8564863 15,107,967
229261,612 231,712,187

The notes on pages 62 to 136 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Note 2017 2016
RM RM
Revenue 21 32,955,716 21,583,343
Administrative expenses (2,905,191) (3,683,712)
Other operating expenses (67,268) (167)
Other operating income 189,919 539,474
Results from operating activities 30,173,176 18,438,938
Interest expense - )
Profit before tax 22 30,173,176 18,438,929
Tax expense 25 (26,487) (81,201)
Profit for the year representing total
comprehensive income for the year 30,146,689 18,357,728

The notes on pages 62 to 136 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Note 2017 2016
RM RM
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 30,173,176 18,438,929
Adjustments for :
Dividend income (30,083,476) (17,907,842)
Interest income (164,911) (232,638)
Share-based payments 20 - 106,023
Fair value gain on short term funds (894) -
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in
working capital (76,105) 404,472
Changes in working capital :
Other receivables A 2,103,917 10,745,867
Other payables (937,084) (1,319,895)
Cash generated from operations 1,090,728 9,830,444
Tax paid (51,719) (83,051)
Dividend received 30,083,476 17,907,842
Net cash from operating activities 31,122,485 27,655,235
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 164,911 232,638
Increase in investments in subsidiaries B - (99,998)
Fair value gain on short term funds 894 -
Net cash generated from investing activities 165,805 132,640
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (cont'd)

Note 2017 2016
RM RM
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from shares issued under ESOS 4,735,378 2,647,987
Repurchase of treasury shares 15 (851) 916)
Dividends paid (36,461,149) (28,626,619)
Net cash used in financing activities (31,726,622) (25,979,548)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (438,332) 1,808,327
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 2,633,983 825,656
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 13 2,195,651 2,633,983
NOTES
A. Changes in other receivables
Changes in other receivables comprise of :
2017 2016
RM RM
Decrease of other receivables during the year, net 2,103,917 153,873,367
Capitalisation of amount due from subsidiaries - (143,127,500)
2,103,917 10,745,867

B. Increase in investments in subsidiaries
During the last financial year, the Company increased its investments in subsidiaries with
a total cost of RM 143,227,498, of which RM99,998 was settled in cash and the remaining

balance of RM143,127,500 was settled by way of capitalising the amount due from
subsidiaries.

The notes on pages 62 to 136 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Asia File Corporation Bhd. is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled
in Malaysia and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business are as follows :

Registered office

Suite 16-1 (Penthouse Upper)
Menara Penang Garden

42A, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah
10050 Penang

Principal place of business

Plot 16, Kawasan Perindustrian Bayan Lepas
Phase IV

Mukim 12, Bayan Lepas,

11900 Penang

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”) and the Group’s interest in an
associate.

The Company is principally engaged as an investment holding company, commission agent
and provider of management services. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are disclosed

in Note 6 to the financial statements.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2017.

1. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”),
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
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1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)

The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have
not been adopted by the Group and the Company :

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2017

e Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 107, Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to MFRS 112, Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2018

e MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)

e MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

e Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

e IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

e Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016
Cycle)

e Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

e Amendments to MFRS 4, Insurance Contracts — Applying MFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

e Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)

e Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property — Transfers of Investment
Property

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019
e MFRS 16, Leases

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods

beginning on or after a date yet to be confirmed

e Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS
128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)

The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned accounting
standards, amendments and interpretations in the respective financial years when
the abovementioned standards, amendments or interpretations become effective.

The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments or interpretations
are not expected to have any material financial impacts to the current period and
prior period financial statements of the Group and the Company except as
mentioned below:

(U]

(i)

(iii)

MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MFRS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 111, Construction Contracts,
MEFRS 118, Revenue, IC Interpretation 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes,
IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate, 1C
Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation
131, Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The Group is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from
the adoption of MFRS 15.

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments

MEFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement on the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, and on hedge accounting.

The Group is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from
the adoption of MFRS 9.

MFRS 16, Leases

MEFRS 16 replaces the guidance in MFRS 117, Leases, IC Interpretation 4,
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, 1C Interpretation
115, Operating Leases — Incentives and IC Interpretation 127, Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Group is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from
the adoption of MFRS 16.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than
as disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.
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1.

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(¢) Functional and presentation currency

(@)

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is
the Company’s functional currency. All financial information is presented in RM,
unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements other than those disclosed in Note 5 -
Valuation of investment properties, Note 8 - Intangible assets and Note 9
Inventories.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these financial statements and have been applied consistently by Group
entities, unless otherwise stated.

(@

Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the
Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are
considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive.
The Group also considers it has de facto power over an investee when,
despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to
direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s
return.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

@)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment includes
transaction costs.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from
the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the
Group.

For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the

acquisition date as:

e the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

e the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree;
plus

e if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the
existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

. the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or
equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business
combination are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control as equity transactions between the
Group and its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference between the
Group’s share of net assets before and after the change, and any
consideration received or paid, is adjusted to or against Group reserves.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv) Loss of control

")

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets
and liabilities of the former subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the
other components of equity related to the former subsidiary from the
consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising
on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any
interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value
at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-
accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on
the level of influence retained.

Associates

Associates are entities, including unincorporated entities, in which the
Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method less any impairment losses, unless it is
classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the investment includes
transaction costs. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates,
after adjustments if any, to align the accounting policies with those of the
Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date
that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the
carrying amount of that interest including any long-term investments is
reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on
behalf of the associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any
retained interest in the former associate at the date when significant
influence is lost is measured at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
initial carrying amount of a financial asset. The difference between the fair
value of any retained interest plus proceeds from the interest disposed of and
the carrying amount of the investment at the date when equity method is
discontinued is recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

")

i)

(vii)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s interest in an associate decreases but does not result in a
loss of significant influence, any retained interest is not remeasured. Any
gain or loss arising from the decrease in interest is recognised in profit or
loss. Any gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are also reclassified proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or
loss would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

Investments in associates are measured in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the investment
includes transaction costs.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of
the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit
or loss and the comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and owners of the Company.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are
allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-
controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and
expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted associates
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investees. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency

(@)

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional
currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end
of the reporting period are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
not retranslated at the end of the reporting date, except for those that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit
or loss, except for differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-
sale equity instruments or a financial instrument designated as a hedge of
currency risk, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses
arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net
investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive
income, and are presented in the foreign currency translation reserve
(“FCTR”) in equity.

Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit
Malaysia

The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies
other than RM, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from
business combinations before 1 April 2012 (the date when the Group first
adopted MFRS) which are treated as assets and liabilities of the Company.
The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to RM at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

69



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency (continued)

(i)

Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit
Malaysia (continued)

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve (“FCTR”) in
equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then
the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to
the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed of such
that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the FCTR related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes
of only part of its investment in an associate that includes a foreign
operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

(¢) Financial instruments

@)

Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group or the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial instrument.

An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative if, and only if] it is not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host contract
is not categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in
the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for
in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the host contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial assets
that are held for trading, including derivatives (except for a derivative
that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument) or financial assets that are specifically designated

into this category upon initial recognition.

Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
unquoted equity instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured are measured at cost.

Other financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at their fair values with the gain or loss

recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are

not quoted in an active market.

Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(¢c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale category comprises investment in equity and debt

securities instruments that are not held for trading.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost. Other financial assets categorised as
available-for-sale are subsequently measured at their fair values with
the gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from
monetary items and gains and losses of hedged items attributable to
hedge risks of fair value hedges which are recognised in profit or loss.
On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity into profit or loss.
Interest calculated for a debt instrument using the effective interest

method is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through profit or
loss, are subject to review for impairment (see note 2(h)(i)).

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost other
than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that
are derivatives (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract
or a designated and effective hedging instrument) or financial liabilities that
are specifically designated into this category upon initial recognition.

Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of equity
instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market for identical
instruments whose fair values otherwise cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost.

Other financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Fair value arising from financial guarantee contracts are classified as
deferred income and is amortised to profit or loss using a straight-line
method over the contractual period or, when there is no specified contractual
period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. When
settlement of a financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate
of the obligation is made. If the carrying value of the financial guarantee
contract is lower than the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the
obligation amount and accounted for as a provision.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace

concerned .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets (continued)

")

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and
derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting. Trade date
accounting refers to:

(a) the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it
on the trade date, and

(b) derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on
disposal and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer for
payment on the trade date.

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or control
of the asset is not retained or substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. On
derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

(U]

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The
cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct
labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

@)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net within “other
income” and “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow
to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Significant components of individual assets are assessed, and if a component
has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, then that
component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment from the date that they are available for use. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it
is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment
under construction are not depreciated until the assets are ready for their
intended use.

The depreciation rates for the current and comparative periods are as
follows:

%
Buildings 1.5-25
Plant and machinery 10 -25
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 8-25
Motor vehicles 20

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end
of the reporting period, and adjusted as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Leased assets

®

Operating leases

Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases and, except for
property interest held under operating lease, the leased assets are not recognised
on the statement of financial position. Property interest held under an operating
lease, which is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is
classified as investment property and measured using fair value model.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the
term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the reporting
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land which in substance is an operating lease is classified as prepaid
lease payments.

Intangible assets
@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity-accounted associates,
the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and an impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
equity-accounted associates.

(ii) Other intangible assets
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired by the Group, which
have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iv) Amortisation
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised

but are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Intangible assets (continued)

(iv) Amortisation (continued)

Other intangible assets are amortised from the date that they are available
for use. Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as
follows:

e Customer contracts — 7 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted, if appropriate.

(g) Investment property

(@)

(i)

Investment property carried at cost

Investment properties are properties which are owned or held under a
leasehold interest to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both. These include land (other than prepaid lease payments) held for a
currently undetermined future use. Properties that are occupied by the
companies in the Group are accounted for as owner-occupied rather than as
investment properties.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, consistent with the
accounting policy for property, plant and equipment as stated in accounting
policy Note 2(d).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the investment property.

An investment property is derecognised on its disposal, or when it is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the item is derecognised.

Reclassification to/from investment property

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment
properties following a change in its use, evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied property or end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Investment property (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reclassification to/from investment property (continued)

Transfer between investment properties and property, plant and equipment
does not change the carrying amount and the cost of the property
transferred.

Determination of fair value
The Directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s investment properties

based on the Directors’ own assessment by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

(h) Impairment

®)

Financial assets

All financial assets (except for financial assets categorised as fair value
through profit or loss, investments in subsidiaries and investment in an
associate) are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result
of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For an investment
in an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective
evidence exists, then the impairment loss of the financial asset is estimated.

An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in
profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.

An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and the asset’s current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised. Where a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised in other comprehensive income, the
cumulative loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.

An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried
at cost is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference
between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment (continued)

@)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity
instrument classified as available for sale is not reversed through profit or
loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed what
the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories) are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For goodwill that has indefinite useful lives or that are
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each period at
the same time.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-
generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing, cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which
impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired in a
business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of
its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
related cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment (continued)

@

)

(ii) Other assets (continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-generating units)
on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of
other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which
the reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is measured based on first-in, first-out principle and
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and manufactured
inventories, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with
banks and highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes
in fair value with original maturities of three months or less, and are used by the
Group and the Company in the management of their short term commitments.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Provisions

U]

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.

Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are
not remeasured subsequently.

(i)  Issue expenses

Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are
recognised as a deduction from equity.

(ii) Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
(iii) Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the
consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, net of any tax
effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares that
are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares in the
statement of changes in equity.

Where treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the
treasury shares is applied in the reduction of the share premium account or
distributable reserves, or both.

Where treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the difference
between the sales consideration net of directly attributable costs and the
carrying amount of the treasury shares is recognised in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in share premium.

(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Borrowing costs (continued)

()

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

Revenue and other income
(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an
executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods
can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can
be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of
revenue as the sales are recognised.

(ii) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are
recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the
lease. Rental income from subleased property is recognised as other
income.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s

or the Company’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case
of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Revenue and other income (continued)

(0)

(iv) Commission

When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal
in a transaction, the revenue recognised is the net amount of commission
made by the Group.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method in profit or loss except for interest income arising from temporary
investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy on borrowing costs.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
financial years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the
following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecously.

82



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Income tax (continued)

P)

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax
incentives that is not a tax base of an asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to
the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against
the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.

Employee benefits

@)

(i)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual
bonuses, paid annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus or profit-sharing plan if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

State plans

The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or
loss in the financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payments is available.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of share-based payment granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet the
related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The fair value of employee share options is measured using a binomial
lattice model. Measurement inputs include share price on measurement date,
exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted
average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to publicly
available information), weighted average expected life of the instruments
(based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour),
expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based on government
bonds). Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the
transactions are not taken into account in determining fair value.

(q) Earnings per ordinary share

()

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary
shares (“EPS”).

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, which comprise share options granted to employees.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. Operating segment results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, which in this case is the Chief Executive of the Group,
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Contingencies
(i)  Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is not
recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Contingencies (continued)
(ii) Contingent assets

When an inflow of economic benefit of an asset is probable where it arises
from past events and where existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity, the asset is not recognised in the
statements of financial position but is being disclosed as a contingent asset.
When the inflow of economic benefit is virtually certain, then the related
asset is recognised.

(t) Fair value measurements

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease
transactions, is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair value are categorised into different
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

4. Prepaid lease payments - Group

Unexpired
period less
than 50

years

RM
Cost
At 1 April 2015/31 March 2016/1 April 2016/31 March 2017 2,294,116
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015 732,289
Amortisation for the year 38,875
At 31 March 2016/1 April 2016 771,164
Amortisation for the year 38,873
At 31 March 2017 810,037
Carrying amounts
At 1 April 2015 1,561,827
At 31 March 2016/1 April 2016 1,522,952
At 31 March 2017 1,484,079

5. Investment properties - Group

RM
Buildings
Cost

At 1 April 2015/31 March 2016/1 April 2016/31 March 2017 2,066,583
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(cont'd)

Investment properties - Group (continued)

RM
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2015 596,448
Depreciation for the year 41,332
At 31 March 2016/1 April 2016 T 637,780
Depreciation for the year 41,332
At 31 March 2017 679,112
Carrying amounts
At 1 April 2015 1,470,135
At 31 March 2016/1 April 2016 1,428,803
At 31 March 2017 1,387,471

Investment properties comprise factory buildings that are leased to third parties. The
leases are entered into for a period of 5 years. Subsequent renewals are to be negotiated
with the lessee.

The following are recognised in the profit or loss in respect of investme